
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

REVISED  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor  

 
Thursday, March 10, 2022 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance .............................................. Board Member Burt Gerl 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Yes 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of February 10, 2022 minutes  
B. Layover of February 24, 2022 minutes 

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report   

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30 day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees .................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee .................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Exercise Option to Purchase the Parking Lot Located at 310 South Church 

and 320 and 324 Chestnut Street, Rockford, Illinois  



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

3. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Cailyn Kottman and Christopher 
Wilkinson v. County of Winnebago) 

4. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Implementing the PREA Standards, 
Protecting Inmates and Safeguarding Communities to be Laid Over 

5. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Emergency Rental Assistance 
Program I to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ............. Dorothy Redd, Committee Vice Chairwoman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution to Grant Twenty Five-Thousand Dollars ($25,000) from Host Fees to the 

Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau (RACVB) to Support the Grand Fondo 
New York (GFNY) Event 
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Submitting to the Electors by Referendum the Advisory Question of 

Increasing the Tax Levied by the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the Specific Purpose 
of Maintaining River Bluff Nursing Home 

3. Resolution Amending the Organizational Structure of the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance for the Approval of a Budget Amendment for the Winnebago County Coroner’s 

Office Laid Over from February 24, 2022 Meeting 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 
Finance Committee 
A. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Purchase of the Parking Lot at the 

Corner of Church and Chestnut 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet) 
B. March 24 and April 7 Board Meetings Via Zoom 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, March 24, 2022 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 



























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 









 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2022 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

 
RESOLUTION TO EXERCISE OPTION TO PURCHASE THE PARKING LOT 
LOCATED AT 310 SOUTH CHURCH AND 320 AND 324 CHESTNUT STREET, 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 
 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 1, 2014, the County of Winnebago (“County”) and Church & 
Chestnut Development, LLC (“Landlord”) entered into a lease agreement (“Lease”) for the 
parking lot, located at 310 South Church and 320 and 324 Chestnut Street, PINS 11-22-479-002; 
11-22-479-003 and 11-22-479-009 (collectively the “Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the term of the lease is for a fifteen (15) year term, which expires on 
December 31, 2028, subject to certain terms and conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9 (a) of the lease, the County “shall have the right of 
first refusal on any contemplated sale of all or any part of the Property by the Landlord to a third 
party in an arm’s length transaction for fair market value (“Bona Fide Sale”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the County’s receipt of a copy of the Bona Fide Sale offer, the County 
has forty-five (45) days, at its option, to purchase the Property upon the same terms and 
conditions as set forth in the Bona Fide Sale offer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2022, the Landlord informally notified the County by email 
of the proposed sale of the Property, and on February 3, 2022, the County received formal notice 
by overnight courier of the proposed sale from the Landlord in compliance with Section 21 of the 
lease; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee and the County Board, after having reviewed the 
Bona Fide Sale offer, has determined it is in the best interests of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois to exercise the said option. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that Joseph V. Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized 
and directed to take any steps necessary to exercise the option to purchase the property located at 310 
South Church and 320 and 324 Chestnut Street. 

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the County 
Administrator, County Treasurer, County Auditor and Chief Financial Officer. 

 
   Respectfully submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this ____ day of ___________________, 2022. 
 
      

                 ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



Support Material for Option to Purchase 

 

1.  Original Lease Document 
2.  Value Estimate 
3.  Letter of Intent to Purchase 
4.  Commitment to Purchase 
5.  GIS Map of Property 
6.  Purchase Agreement 
7.  Addendum to Purchase Agreement 
8.  Lot Map 
9.  Modified IGA for Authority Public Parking between   

City of Rockford Winnebago Co and RAVE 



























Value Estimate

Interest Rate Estimate 3%
Date 2/1/2022 Contract Terms
Period 12
NPV of Future Payments at 3% 618,064$              Total Base Parking Fee 847,113$              
NPV RAVE Payments @ $2,500 per month 185,144                 Total Base Sublease Fee 504,234$              
NPV of 68 Parking Spots @ 26 Per Month 132,702$              

935,910$              Total Payments 1,351,347$           

Land Value Based on Current Assessment Total Payments Made 665,505$              
Parcel 11-22-479-002 $41,127 Total Still Due 685,842$              
Parcel 11-22-479-009 $38,691
Parcel 11-22-479-003 $32,292 Contract Offer 1,110,600$           

$112,110

Price Point for County Purchase
Value Greater Than: $174,690
*NPV until 12-31-2028

Property Tax Impact
Current New New

EAV Property Tax EAV Property Tax
10,764         1,384$         106,631.87      13,711$                 
13,709         1,763$         135,806.04      17,462$                 
12,897         1,658$         127,762.09      16,428$                 
37,370         4,805$         370,200            47,602$                 



email to sam.kramer@marcusmillichap.com 
Sam Kramer 
Associate 
Marcus & Millichap 
600 East 96th Street, Suite 500 
Indianapolis, IN 46240 
Phone: 317-218-5356 

 

NON-BINDING LETTER OF INTENT 
 
The Buyer hereby offers to purchase the Property on the following terms and conditions: 
 

Property:   Downtown Rockford Parking Lot 
    310,320,324 Chestnut St Rockford, IL 61101 
    APNs: 11-22-479-002,  11-22-479-009, 11-22-479-003 

 
Purchase Price:   $_   1,110,600___ 

 
Deposit: $__20,000__within 3 Days of Execution of Purchase Agreement. 
 Deposit non-refundable after Inspection Period is waived. 
 
Purchase Agreement: Buyer shall submit within __7_ Days of an Accepted Letter of Intent. 
 
Financing Contingency: ___ 50__Days from Effective Date of Purchase Agreement.  

 
Due Diligence/    
Inspection Period:  ____ 21 ___Days from Effective Date of Purchase Agreement. 

 
Close of Escrow: ____ 10___  Days after removal of financing contingency. 

 
Title/Escrow Company:  To be mutually agreed upon by Buyer and Seller. 

 
Closing Costs:   Seller shall pay for standard owner’s title insurance policy. 

     Each party shall pay its own legal fees. 
     Closing fees shall be split 50-50. 
  

Survey: Seller shall furnish new survey.   
 

   
This offer will expire if not executed by both parties by ____5:00 p.m. 01/20/2022________. Buyer reserves the right 
to rescind this letter at will and without notice. 
 
This proposal is intended to be a non-binding letter of intent which states terms and conditions upon which Buyer 
will consider purchasing the Property from Seller. Neither party shall become legally bound in any manner until a 
formal purchase agreement is executed and delivered to both parties. 
 
Buyer Signature:  ____________________________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
By:   ___                                                         _______________ 
 
 
AGREED & ACCEPTED BY SELLER: 
 
Seller Signature:  ____________________________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
By:   ____________________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D053FF6B-B6BD-4EAE-8034-2C57E5A9A6FF

William C. Rason

1/17/2022 | 15:03:15 CST



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE

SCHEDULE A
Commitment No:  2200163

1. Commitment Date:  February 02, 2022, 09:00 am                                                Issue Date:  February 04, 2022, 11:00 am

2. The policy or policies to be issued are: POLICY AMOUNT

(a) ALTA OWNER POLICY - 2006 $1,135,600.00
Proposed Insured: Chestnut Park LLC

(b) ALTA LOAN POLICY - 2006 $851,700.00

Proposed Insured: First Financial Bank, NA, its successors and/or assigns as their interests may appear.

Proposed Borrower:Chestnut Park LLC

3. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in the Commitment and covered herein is located in the State of
Illinois.

4. Title to the Fee Simple estate or interest in said land is at the effective date hereof vested in

Church & Chestnut Development, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company

5. Legal description of the land:

See Legal Description Attached as Exhibit A

Countersigned
Lakeshore Title Agency

By__PW Pontarelli___________________________
Authorized Signatory

First American Title Insurance Company Page 1



Exhibit A

LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 IN BLOCK 16 AS DESIGNATED UPON THE MAP OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN (NOW CITY) OF
ROCKFORD, WEST OF ROCK RIVER, THE MAP OF WHICH IS RECORDED IN BOOK "E" OF DEEDS ON PAGE
224; SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO AND STATE OF ILLINOIS.

NOTE FOR INFORMATION:

CKA: 310, 320 AND 324 CHESTNUT ST., ROCKFORD, IL 61101
PIN: 11-22-479-009 (Pt Lots 1, 2 and 3), 11-22-479-002 (Pt Lots1, 2 and 3) AND 11-22-479-003 (Pt Lots1, 2 and 3)



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE

SCHEDULE B - SECTION I

REQUIREMENTS
Effective Date:  February 2, 2022, 09:00 am

The following are the requirements to be complied with:

(a) Payment to, or for the account of, the sellers or mortgagors of the full consideration for the estate or interest to be insured.
(b) Instruments in insurable form which must be executed, delivered and duly filed for record
(c) Payment of all taxes, charges, assessments, levied and assessed against subject premises, which are due and payable.
(d) Proper instrument(s) creating the estate or interest to be insured must be executed and duly filed for record, to wit:

a.  Deed, in proper form, from Seller(s) to Buyer(s)
b.  Mortgage, in proper form, from borrower(s) to the lender and for the loan amount shown on Schedule "A" of this
commitment

(e) Buyer/Borrower must bring to close an original insurance policy at least in the amount of mortgage, and a paid receipt for
one year's premium, with a mortgagee's clause.  Binders are not acceptable to lenders.

(f) Standard Exception 2 will be removed from the owner’s policy insuring completed structures with four or fewer single
residences and individual condominium units upon compliance with the following items:

a.  Existing survey, or if no survey is available, an affidavit in lieu of survey by sellers to that effect.
b.  Execution of an ALTA extended coverage loan and owners policy combined statement.

NOTE: This commitment is not an abstract, examination, report or representation of fact of title and does not create and shall not be the basis of any claim for
negligence, negligent misrepresentation or other tort claim or action.  The sole liability of the company and its title insurance agent shall arise under and be governed
by the conditions of the commitment.

NOTE: Your attention is directed to the provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 which require the reporting of real estate transactions to the Internal Revenue
Service.  All real estate transactions (except for refinances) closed after January 1, 1987 must be reported on a Form 1099-B which must be completed in full at the
time of closing.

NOTE:  "The final 2006 ALTA Policy issued will contain an arbitration provision.  When the amount of insurance is $2,000,000 or less, all arbitral matters in dispute
shall be arbitrated at the option of either the company or the Insured and will be the exclusive remedy available to the parties.  You may review a copy of the arbitration
rules at http://www.alta.org."

NOTE:  If the subject property is located within Cook, Kane, Will or Peoria County it is subject to the Illinois Predatory Lending Database Program which becomes
effective July 1, 2008, as authorized by Public Act 95-0691 (SB1167).

REQUIREMENT:  Record the mortgage or trust deed to be insured together with either a Certificate of Compliance, or a Certificate of Exemption if the subject
mortgage loan or trust deed is an exempt transaction.

Upon receipt of either a Certificate of Compliance or Certificate of Exemption the note and requirement will not appear on the final policy to be issued.

NOTE: We will require all parties to the transaction to execute a Personal Information Affidavit at closing.

NOTE: Effective January 1, 2011 all underwriters will charge a fee for the issuance of a closing protection letter.  Each underwriter can set their own fee.  Since the fee
can vary please include an appropriate amount on your good faith estimate for the closing protection letter.

NOTE:  Effective immediately, Lakeshore Title Agency will only accept, from any and all parties to the transaction, wire transfer funds as incoming funds, Lakeshore
Title Agency will not accept cashier's checks, certified checks and/or other any other form or draft as incoming funds, whether presented from an Illinois financial
institution or an out of state financial institution."

NOTE:       Please be aware that due to the conflict between federal and state laws concerning the cultivation, distribution, manufacture or sale of marijuana, the
Compnay is not able to close or insure any transaction involving land that is associated with these activities.

First American Title Insurance Company Page 1 Page 1

http://www.alta.org


Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE B - SECTION II
STANDARD EXCEPTIONS

Effective Date:  February 2, 2022, 09:00 am

Schedule B of the policy or policies to be issued will contain the following exceptions unless the same are disposed of to the
satisfaction of the Company and the Company will not pay costs, attorney’s fees or expenses which arise by reason of:

1. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first appearing in the public records or attaching
subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date the Proposed Insured acquires for value of record the estate or
interest or mortgage thereon covered by this Commitment.

2. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the
public record.

3. Any encroachments, easements, encumbrance, violation, adverse circumstances , measurements, affecting title, variations in area
or content, party walls or other facts which a correct survey of the premises would show.

4. Rights or claims of parties in possession not shown by the public records.

5. Roads, ways, streams or easements, if any, not shown by the public records, riparian rights and the title to any filled-in lands.

6. All assessments and taxes for the year 2022, and all subsequent years.

7. Right of way for drainage ditches, feeders, tiles and laterals, if any.

8. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, and any other matters not shown by the public
records which would be disclosed by an accurate survey and inspection of the land described in Schedule C.

9. Easements, or claims of easements, not shown by the public records.

10. Taxes or special assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the public records.

11. Covenants, conditions, restrictions, rights of way, building lines and easements appearing as of public records, but omitting
any such covenants or restrictions based on race, color, religion, handicap, familial status or national origin, if any.

First American Title Insurance Company Page 2



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE B - SECTION II

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS

Real Estate Taxes for the year 2020 and subsequent years:1.

Taxes for 2019 and previous years are posted PAID.

1st installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $881.38 are Posted Paid.
2nd installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $881.38 are Posted Paid.

            Taxes for 2021 and subsequent years are not yet due or payable

PIN: 11-22-479-002

Real Estate Taxes for the year 2020 and subsequent years:2.

Taxes for 2019 and previous years are posted PAID.

1st installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $692.04 are Posted Paid.
2nd installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $692.04 are Posted Paid.

            Taxes for 2021 and subsequent years are not yet due or payable

PIN: 11-22-479-003

Real Estate Taxes for the year 2020 and subsequent years:3.

Taxes for 2019 and previous years are posted PAID.

1st installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $829.18 are Posted Paid.
2nd installment of 2020 taxes, in the amount of $829.18 are Posted Paid.

            Taxes for 2021 and subsequent years are not yet due or payable

PIN: 11-22-479-009

We do not find an existing first mortgage of record. If this is inaccurate, we should be advised, and this4.
commitment is subject to such other exceptions, if any, as then may be deemed necessary.

With respect to the Limited Liability Company shown in Schedule A in title to the land, the Company must be5.
provided with the following:

a) A certification from the Illinois Secretary of State that the L.L.C. has properly filed it's articles of organization.

b) A copy of the Articles of Organization, together with any amendments thereto.

c) A Certificate of Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State.

d) A copy of the Operating agreement and all amendments thereto; and,

First American Title Insurance Company Page 3



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

e) A Roster of members or incumbent managers.

f) A Certification that no event of dissolution has occurred.

NOTE: Unless the deed is executed by all members, we must also be furnished evidence satisfactory to the Company
that all necessary consents, authorizations, resolutions, notices and actions relating to the sale and the execution and
delivery of the deed as required under applicable law and the governing documents have been conducted, given or
properly waived.

Purchaser/Borrower appears to be a Limited Liability Company, the Company must be provided with the6.
following:

a) A certification from the Illinois Secretary of State that the L.L.C. has properly filed it's articles of organization.

b) A copy of the Articles of Organization, together with any amendments thereto.

c) A Certificate of Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State.

d) A copy of the Operating agreement and all amendments thereto; and,

e) A Roster of members or incumbent managers.

f) A Certification that no event of dissolution has occurred.

NOTE:  Unless the mortgage is executed by all members, we must also be furnished evidence satisfactory to the
Company that all necessary consents, authorizations, resolutions, notices and actions relating to the execution and
delivery of the mortgage as required under applicable law and the governing documents have been conducted, given or
properly waived.

Relative to the deletion of the Standard Exceptions 1 through 6, we should be furnished with the following:7.

1)A sworn statement disclosing all parties in possession of the land, including parties in possession under unrecorded
leases and the terms and provisions thereof, options; and unrecorded contracts to purchase the land.
 
2)Letters for Public or Quasi-Public Utilities serving the area in which the land is located.

3)A current survey of the land, properly certified to the company, made in accordance with (i) the accuracy
requirements "Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for Land Title Surveys" jointly established and adopted by the
American Land Title Association and National Society of Professional Surveyors (ALTA/NSPS) Congress on Survey
and Mapping February 23, 2016;  and (ii) the Laws of the State of Illinois.

4)An Alta Extended Coverage Policy Statement. If new construction has taken place within the last six months, the
following should be provided:  Satisfactory evidence of the payment in full of the cost of furnishing services, labor and
materials in connection with any improvements made on the land within six months of the date of this commitment.
This evidence should consist of sworn contractor and subcontractor(s) affidavits, together with all necessary waivers of
lien.

Existing unrecorded leases, if any, and all rights of the lessees and of any person or party claiming by, through or8.
under lessees and rights of parties in possession under such unrecorded leases.

First American Title Insurance Company Page 4



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

We will waive this exception upon receipt of evidence showing no tenants are in possession of any portion of the subject
premises; or in the alternate, the name of any party holding an unrecorded lease to the subject premises should be
disclosed along with the term of said lease.

Our owners/loan policy when issued will be subject to any said unrecorded lease.

Rights of the property manager, if any, to a statutory lien on the premises for its property manager's fee.9.

NOTE:  Provide an affidavit by the owners stating that there is no property manager for the insured premises.  In
absence thereof, provide a waiver of lien by the property manager covering the date of the recording of the deed and
mortgage to our insureds.

DEED, in proper form, from Church & Chestnut Development, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company to10.
CONTRACT PURCHASER(S), to be recorded prior to the mortgage insured hereby.

Pursuant to the State and County codes and City, Village or Municipal Ordinance, the recording/filing of any deed11.
or other instruments of conveyance may be subject to real estate transfer taxes. Relative thereto, the deed(s)
submitted to this company for recording must be accompanied with the appropriate transfer tax stamps, water
certification, zoning compliance certification, if required. In lieu thereof said deeds, etc., must be properly
exempted from said tax.

Please check with the City, Village of Municipality regarding their requirements for the transfer of property.

The following endorsements have been approved for the loan policy:12.

Comprehensive Endorsement  (Alta 9)
Location Endorsement
EPA Endorsement

IEPA No Further Remediation Letter and attachments recorded 5/20/2014 as Document No. 20141015417.13.

Rights of the Public, State and Local municipalities and adjoining property owners to the use of and access to the14.
area designated as "Alley" as per plat of Subdivision recorded in Plat Book E at Page 224.

Subject to Building Lines, Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Record, if any.15.

Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation or adverse circumstance that would be disclosed by an16.
accurate and complete land survey of the land and inspection of the land.

Rights of way for drainage ditches, tiles, feeders and laterals, if any.17.

Rights of the public, the municipality and the State of Illinois in and to that part of the premises in question taken,18.
used, or dedicated for roads, streets, alleys of highways.

Rights of public or quasi-public utilities to maintain overhead wires, over, upon and across the land.19.

First American Title Insurance Company Page 5



Lakeshore Title Agency
3501 Algonquin Rd Ste 120
Rolling Meadows, IL  60008

Authorized Agent of First American Title Insurance Company

File No.  2200163

First American Title Insurance Company Page 6



























 $460c935e4711$1086E2712F3046D991E8C4F974E465B5.doc 1  of  1 Buyer's Initials____________  Seller's Initials____________ 

Copyright  Marcus & Millichap  2008 

 

ADDENDUM TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This document is an addendum ("Addendum") to the Purchase Agreement ("Agreement") between  Church & 

Chestsnut Development, LLC ("Seller") and  Chestnut Park LLC  ("Buyer") executed by Buyer on the  28th  
day of   Janurary  , 2022  for that certain real property located at   310, 320, & 324 Chestnut Street, 
Rockford, IL 61101 . 
 
The provisions of this Addendum are hereby added to and incorporated in the Terms and Conditions in the 
aforementioned Agreement.  Any provision of this Addendum which is not numbered and fully completed shall have no 
force or effect. 
 
The Buyer and Seller agree to modify the Purchase Agreement accordingly: 
 

1. Buyer herby waives all due diligence and financing contingencies subject to first right of refusal being denied by 
Winnebago County 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE 

The undersigned Buyer, Seller and Agent accept and agree to the foregoing. 
 
 
BUYER:  DATE:  

    
SELLER:  DATE:  
    
 
 
AGENT: MARCUS & MILLICHAP REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT SERVICES  
 
 
BY:  DATE:  

    
 
PARTIES UNDERSTAND AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT BROKER IS NOT QUALIFIED TO PROVIDE, AND HAS NOT 
BEEN CONTRACTED TO PROVIDE, LEGAL, FINANCIAL OR TAX ADVICE, AND THAT ANY SUCH ADVICE MUST 
BE OBTAINED FROM PARTIES’ ATTORNEY, ACCOUNTANT OR TAX PROFESSIONAL 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C04ABE3E-E447-40A9-96B1-8AC5F46AF73B

2/28/2022 | 11:40:28 CST

2/28/2022 | 09:44:03 PST































 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  March 3, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Cailyn Kottman 

and Christopher Wilkinson v. County of Winnebago) 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date:    March 10, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $35,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                          Budget Impact:  Within budgeted amount 

 
Background Information: Settlement of claim by the Plaintiffs against the County of Winnebago. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office  
 
Follow-Up: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2022 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY:  JAIME SALGADO 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF LITIGATION (Cailyn Kottman and 

Christopher Wilkinson v. County of Winnebago) 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Cailyn Kottman and Christopher Wilkinson. v. County of Winnebago is a 
pending civil action against the County of Winnebago, filed in the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, 
Winnebago County, Illinois, as case number 2015-L-10; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiffs therein have agreed to settle all claims they have against the 
County of Winnebago for the sum of Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee, after having reviewed the facts and circumstances 
of the aforementioned case and after having conferred with the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney, through his assistant, has determined it is in the best interests of the citizens of 
Winnebago County to settle this case on the terms set forth above.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Winnebago County State’s Attorney is hereby authorized to settle the 
aforementioned lawsuit by paying the Plaintiffs therein the sum of Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($35,000.00).  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Winnebago County Treasurer, Winnebago 
County Clerk, and Winnebago County Finance Department are authorized and directed to 
prepare and deliver to the Winnebago County State’s Attorney one or more County Warrants 
totaling Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars ($35,000.00); payable as directed by the State’s Attorney.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 



AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado, Chairman                                Jaime Salgado, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
John Butitta           John Butitta 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Paul Arena      Paul Arena 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby          Jean Crosby  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this ____ day of ___________________, 2022. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

     

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Debbie Jarvis  
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  March 3, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Resolution for Approval of Budget Amendment for Implementing 

the PREA Standards, Protecting Inmates and Safeguarding 
Communities  

County Code:       Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
   
Board Meeting Date:    March 10, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                Appropriation Amount:  $75,107 
If not, explain funding source:                           DOJ, Bureau of Justice Assistance                                                                        
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                                      Budget Impact:   None 

 
Background Information: Implementing the PREA Standards, Protecting Inmates and 

Safeguarding Communities Grant awarded by the DOJ Bureau of 
Justice Assistance supports Winnebago County Juvenile Detention 
Center’s Goal of achieving PREA compliance standards.   This 
amendment serves to make corrective accounting adjustments to 
maintain available program funds in separate Munis accounts. 

  
 
Recommendation:  Grant compliance and Finance department guidance suggests this 

budget amendment should be made to maintain separation 
between grant awards. 

  
 
Contract/Agreement:  The funding award is available for review. 
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
Follow-Up:   Update Munis Accounting records.   
 

        



1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance: March 3, 2022 
 Lay Over: March 10, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: March 24, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022-006 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, Implementing PREA Standards, Protecting Inmates, and Safeguarding 
Communities awarded by the DOJ Bureau of Justice Assistance, supports for Winnebago County 
Juvenile Detention Center to achieve compliance of PREA Standards and Prevent Abuse at 
Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-006, 2021 BJA FY21 Implement the PREA Standards, Protecting Inmates 
and Safeguarding Communities Fund. 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2/24/2022
Detention Home Debbie Jarvis

0131

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

43100 41110-02607 Regular Salary $0 $0 $0 $32,240 $32,240
43100 42115-02607 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $20,567 $20,567
43100 43190-02607 Other Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $20,000 $20,000

Revenue
43100 32110-02607 Federal Grant Award $0 $0 $0 ($72,807) ($72,807)

$0
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DOJ, Bureau of Justice Assistance

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$0 

This amendment establishes a new grant award from the DOJ, Bureau of Justice Assistance. Implementing PREA Standards, 
Protecting Inmates, and Safeguarding Communities supports Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center to achieve 
compliance of PREA Standards and Prevent Abuse at Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center.

2022-006

43100DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059| Email: mdokken@wincoil.us    

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  March 3, 2022 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Emergency 

Rental Assistance Program I 
 
County Code:       Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
   
Board Meeting Date:    March 10, 2022 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                Appropriation Amount:  $1,917,656.04 
If not, explain funding source:     Fund Balance 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 61100/411110,43202,43203             Budget Impact:   $1,917,656.04 

 
Background Information: This amendment is needed to allocate the remaining Fund Balance 

for ERAP I. In FY21 we did not end up giving out as much assistance 
as we anticipated when we were doing the budget for FY22. We 
want to allocate the remain Fund Balance of $1,917656.04 to 
salaries and assistance so we can close the grant fund out and move 
to ERAP II. 

  
 
Recommendation:  Department Agrees 
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable 
 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Mar 3, 2022 
 Lay Over: Mar 10, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Mar 24, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, ERAP I has fund balance that needs to be allocated to it’s fiscal year 2022 
budget. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-008 ERAP I Adjustment. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 



2 
 

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



3/4/2022
ERAP I Dave Rickert

0311

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

61100 41110 Regular Salaries $128,437 $0 $128,437 $22,000 $150,437
61100 43202 ERAP-Rental Arrears $0 $0 $0 $1,706,090 $1,706,090
61100 43203 ERAP-Utility Arrears $0 $0 $0 $189,566 $189,566

Revenue
Fund Balance

$1,917,656.04
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$1,917,656 

As ERAP I is winding down we are making adjustments to allocated the remaining fund balance from ERAP I, due to lower than 
anticipated expenditures in FY21.

2022-008

61100DEPT. BUDGET NO.

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

ERAP Grant Fund Balance



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Resolution Executive Summary 

   Committee Date: Monday, February 28, 2022   
   Committee: Economic Development 
   Prepared By: Chris Dornbush 
 

Regional Planning & Economic Development Department  
404 Elm Street, Rm 403, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4350 | E-mail: buildingdept@wincoil.us      

 
Document Title:  Resolution To Grant Twenty Five-Thousand Dollars ($25,000) From Host Fees 

To The Rockford Area Convention And Visitors Bureau (RACVB) To Support 
The Grand Fondo New York (GFNY) Event 

 
County Code: NA 
Board Meeting Date: Thursday, March 11, 2021 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount:   $25,000 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG - OBJ - Project Code: 41700 - 43190 Budget Impact: None - Budgeted 

 
Background Information: 
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events in the region. This request is for a grant of 
$25,000 for the “Grand Fondo New York (GFNY) International Cycling Event in August of 2022. 
RACVB won the bid to host this event, which is a 3 year event (2022, 2023, 2024) to take place, 
however this request is solely for 2022. It’s estimated that this event will bring in $1.3 million in 
tourism to the region through cyclist, spectators, food, hotels, retail sales, and other items. This is 
an international cycling marathon, which Winnebago County is one of five locations that are in 
the United States of America. 
 
Recommendation:  
Winnebago County has historically supported Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 
(RACVB) to promote tourism and special events that spur positive economic impact to the region. 
The Economic Development Committee along with the County Board has supported the efforts of 
RACVB numerous times in recent years with financial assistance from host fees for; Stroll-On-
State 2021-CR-135 ($5,000), WNIT tournament 2021-CR-026 ($20,000), Stroll-On-State 2020-
CR-143, ($5,000), Fred VanFleet Celebration 2019-CR-099 ($5,000), and the Downtown Mural 
Project 2019-CR-065 ($7,000). 
 
Contract/Agreement: 
NA 
 
Legal Review:   
Yes 
 
Follow-Up: 
Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB) updates the Economic Development 
Committee on a quarterly basis and/or the entire Board as requested. 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by:  Dorothy Redd & Fred Wescott  County Board Meeting: March 10, 2022 

            
 

RESOLUTION 
 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 2022 CR _________ 
 
 
RESOLUTION TO GRANT TWENTY FIVE-THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000) FROM 
HOST FEES TO THE ROCKFORD AREA CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU 

(RACVB) TO SUPPORT THE GRAND FONDO NEW YORK (GFNY) EVENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago supports the growth of economic development 
for the region by the attraction of tourism and special events to the area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau, (hereinafter 

“RACVB”) works to grow the economic impact to the Winnebago County Region; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RACVB is requesting $25,000.00 (Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars) to 

hold a special event in the region to draw international visitors to Winnebago County for tourism 
by hosting the Grand Fondo New York (GFNY) International Cycling Event (hereinafter, 
“GFNY Cycling Marathon”) in the summer of 2022; and  

 
WHEREAS, the GFNY Cycling Marathon is the largest cycling marathon in the world, 

featuring 15 races worldwide, and now Winnebago County will be on the international platform 
by being 1 of 5 cities to hold this race in the United States; and  

 
WHEREAS, GFNY Cycling Marathon is estimated to bring approximately $1.3 million 

dollars of tourism to the area, 750-1,000 cyclists, and have over 1,000 hotel room night bookings 
for this event. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County of Winnebago, Illinois will grant $25,000.00 (Twenty-Five 
Thousand Dollars) to the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau (hereinafter, RACVB) 
from host fee funds to support tourism by the 2022 Grand Fondo New York (GFNY) 
International Cycling Event (hereinafter, “GFNY Cycling Marathon”) in Winnebago County. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the RACVB will be required to reimburse the 

County the $25,000 (Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars) of this grant allocated to the “GFNY 
Cycling Marathon”, should “GFNY Cycling Marathon” not occur in 2022. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Director of Regional Planning and Economic Development, County Administrator, the County 
Auditor, and the County Finance Director. 

Respectfully submitted, 

        Economic Development Committee 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

, CHAIRMAN  , CHAIRMAN 

DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN  DOROTHY REDD, VICE CHAIRWOMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK  

TIM NABORS  TIM NABORS 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   
                       

 Project Report for: 
GFNY Cycling Event 

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB)  
 
 

 
Friday, February 25, 2022    [ 1 / 4 ] 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

County Board District (s) #: 1, 2, 5 
County Board 

Member(s): 

Aaron Booker, Jim Webster,  

Dave Tassoni 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Organization Applicant:   

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau 

(RACVB) 
Position: 

Director of Marketing & 

Communication 

Applicant Contact (Point) Person: Phone #: 815-489-1655 

Martesha Brown E-mail:   mbrown@gorockford.com  

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project / Event Organization: Website: rockford.gfny.com 

GFNY Cycle Event Event Date: August 7, 2022 

Project Location Address: Project Request Amount: $25,000 

See attached map, “GFNY Cycle Event” 
  

  

PIN: N/A, in public right-of-way   

 
 
Project Summary: 

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB) is requesting a Non-for-Profit 

Host Fee Grant for GFNY Cycle Event in the amount of $25,000 from the County for August 7, 2022. 

GFNY holds domestic and international cycling races. RACVB has won the bid to host a race that will 

occur in Winnebago County for 2022, 2023, and 2024, this request is only for the 2022 event. There 

are 2 different race courses for the event, a Medium Distance (59.4 miles, see Exhibit A) and a Long 

Distance (93.6 miles, see Exhibit B), registration for each racer is $195. It is estimated that the event 

will bring in approximately $1.3 million in tourism to the region by the 750-1,000 cyclists, and over 

1,000 hotel room night bookings for this event. 

 

 

 

mailto:mbrown@gorockford.com
https://rockford.gfny.com/


COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   
                       

 Project Report for: 
GFNY Cycling Event 

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB)  
 
 

 
Friday, February 25, 2022    [ 2 / 4 ] 

Exhibit A: Medium Course 

 
 
 
 



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   
                       

 Project Report for: 
GFNY Cycling Event 

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB)  
 
 

 
Friday, February 25, 2022    [ 3 / 4 ] 

Exhibit A: Long Course 

 
 



COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
DEPARTMENT OF REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT   
                       

 Project Report for: 
GFNY Cycling Event 

Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau (RACVB)  
 
 

 
Friday, February 25, 2022    [ 4 / 4 ] 

Attachments: 

1. Application 
o Additional Information 

2. Site Map of the location (GFNY Cycle Event) 
3. GFNY Website Information 
4. News Articles 

o WTVO 
o WREX 
o WIFR 

5. Illinois Secretary of State Corporation / LLC Certificate of Good Standing 
 

 

 
 
  
 







Proposed Use of Award: 

Through the awarded bid fees, the Rockford Area Convention and Visitors Bureau will secure the GFNY 
Cycling event. This large-scale event will have a positive economic impact on Winnebago County through 
tourism supporting many hospitality partners including, but not limited to restaurants, hotels, retailers, and 
other small businesses. The race will be held on August 7th, with planned run rides on Friday and Saturday 
before the race. 

This event has been hosted in major top-tier visitor destinations such as New York, the Dominican 
Republic, Panama, Costa Rica, Jerusalem, Florida, Bali, Cannes islands, and more. National events such 
as the GFNY Cycling event bring forth notoriety and elevate our region as an international sports 
destination. The GFNY event will be held in only six locations in the United States. This event has proven to 
register well over 700 cyclists. Riders (and family) will stay between 1-4 nights in the region. 

The Winnebago County GFNY Cycling event is projected to bring 750 cyclists who will ride along the 
streets and paths of our region in two competitive courses ranging from 65 miles to 100 miles. The route 
will incorporate many touchpoints throughout the county including, Rockford, Rockton, Durand, Shirland, 
and other Winnebago county cities and townships. 

Events that bring large economic impact for our county require financial investment through bid fees to 
recruit and secure. Although limited, generally, funding for such bid fees can be paid by the RACVB from 
revenue collected through local hotel taxes. However, as a result of the reduction in hotel occupancy due to 
the pandemic, there are limited funds to attract large-scale events that bring forth this level of regional 
positioning and revenue for our county’s hospitality industry and partners. 

The $25,000 will partially fund the bid fee to bring the international GFNY event to the region for the first 
year of a three-year agreement. More specifically, it will assist in covering the cost necessary for the 
promotion and execution of this event by the event planner. 

 
Expected Program Outcomes Outlined:  

• 750 Cyclists local, national, and international 
• 1,000+ room nights (Overnight Hotel bookings) 
• Anticipated Economic Impact of $1.3 million 
• Earned National and International Media Coverage 
• Competitive positioning for Winnebago County as an international visitor destination in sports 

tourism 
 



N 
RO

CK
TO

N 
AV

E

BESTRD

HA
RR

IS
ON

 R
D

HA
RR

IS
ON

 R
D

ANDERSON RD

HARRISON
RD

FARM
SCHOOL RD

BLAIR RD

HARRISON
RD

RALSTON RD

HARRISON RD

HA
UL

EY
 R

D

HARLEM RD

BAILEY RD

N 
2N

D 
ST

N 
2N

D 
STKILBURN AVE

HONONEGAH RD

HA
UL

EY
 R

D

PR
AI

RI
E R

D

OW
EN

 C
EN

TE
R 

RD

BLA
CKHAWK

BLVD

PRAIRIE
HILL RD

ST
AT

E
HW

Y 2
51

ROCK GROVE RD

ST
AT

E
HW

Y 2
51

KNAPP RD

N 
WI

NN
EB

AG
O 

RD

TRASK BRIDGE RD

SHIRLAND RD

S BLUFF RD

BOSWELL RD

CEMETERY RD

ED
DI

E R
D

ROSCOE RD

LAUBE RD

WI
NS

LO
W 

RD

W ROCKTON RD

LATHAM RD

WH
EE

LE
R 

RD

FARM SCHOOL RD

N 
MA

IN
 ST

CE
NT

ER
 R

D

STATE HWY 2

TELEGRAPH RD

TRASK BRIDGE RD

N 
PE

CA
TO

NI
CA

 R
D

N 
ME

RI
DI

AN
 R

D

YALE BRIDGE RD

FREEPORT RD

District #2
Jim Webster

District #1
Aaron Booker

District #4
Brad Lindmark

District #3
Steve

Schultz

District #6
Keith McDonald

District #17
Fred Wescott

District #5
Dave Tassoni

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office.

1 inch = 9,000 feet

_̂

Race Start
 & Finish

GFNY Cycle Event

Legend
GFNY Cycle Event

Winnebago County Board Districts
District, REP

1, Aaron Booker

2, Jim Webster

3, Steve Schultz

4, Brad Lindmark

5, Dave Tassoni

6, Keith McDonald

7, Paul Arena

17, Fred Wescott

Created by Chris Dornbush
Date: 2/25/2022



Be a Pro For a Day

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/


SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

Rockford is the second largest city in Illinois outside the Chicago metro area. It’s located just
1hr from Chicago and its main international airport, Chicago O’Hare (ORD), making the trip to
GFNY Rockford easily accessible from anywhere in the world.
 
Rockford has many activities like the Discovery Center Museum and Burpee Museum of
Natural History, as well as a downtown area lined with shopping and great bars and
restaurants. Outside the downtown area, there are many shopping and dining options,
especially the large shopping and hotel center off the I-90 in the eastern part of Rockford.
 
There are many bike paths throughout the city adding a fun way to explore the city, its parks
and activities while you’re in town during GFNY race week. The Rock River is the main natural

GFNY Rockford 2022
Medium and Long Distance

SALES END
2/28/2022

195.00 USD
13.65 USD

GFNY Rockford VIP
Special registration area, VIP Corral
start, Post-race VIP Lounge

SALES END
2/28/2022

445.00 USD
31.15 USD

Subscribe to learn more

Rockford

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/


attraction that runs through the heart of Rockford, and several bridges connect the city.
Searls Park and the Anna Page Forest Preserve are beautiful parks you should visit. 

The pre-race expo and post-race festivities are all hosted from the Venetian Club. The race
start and �nish line is conveniently located just aside the Venetian Club, on Elmwood
Rd. After you depart from the Venetian Club, ride north to the loop through Winnebago
County. Medium distance athletes will complete the loop once, long distance athletes will be
racing the loop twice.  

Enjoy fast racing over rolling hills in summer conditions through scenic northern Illinois.
You’ll ride past the incredible nature: Nygren Wetland Preserve, Williams Tree Farm, The
Pavilion at Orchard Ridge Farms, Colors Sands Bluff Nature Preserve, Ferguson Forest
Preserve and across and along the Pecatonica, Sugar and Rock Rivers. 

Take advantage of long straights in the �rst half of the loop to cover the distance quickly with
your group. The early miles on the long straight roads will lead to attacks, stay near the front
of the pack to cover attacks and keep company for the recovery. 

The return portion of the loop has small, winding roads and turns, making your peloton
positioning an important part of your race strategy. Because of the twists and turns, the
attacks will become decisive race moments that will fragment groups.  

Luckily, being in peak summer form, your legs are able to cover the speed and effort
variations. Enjoy the pelotons coming together and splitting apart and ideal long distance
racing conditions to make the most of your summer �tness at GFNY Rockford.
 

Course

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/


LONG COURSE IS A COMPETITION: Only the �nishers of the long course are eligible for
category rankings and Overall and Podium awards. If you want to race and be ranked in your
category, you must complete the long course. Top 10% of �nishers in each age group earn a
spot in the Quali�er Corral at every GFNY World event.

 

GFNY Rockford - Long
View Full Version Send to Device 93.6 mi +3,583 ft / -3,583 ft

+

−

© OpenStreetMap contributo

750
800
850
900
950

ele 
(ft)

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90
distance in miles drag to zoom in

RWGPS

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://ridewithgps.com/routes/37864771
https://ridewithgps.com/routes/37864771
https://ridewithgps.com/routes/37864771/send_to_device
https://rockford.gfny.com/


MEDIUM COURSE IS NOT A COMPETITION: The riders of the medium course will be
provided their start-to-�nish time, but will not be ranked by �nish time. All �nish times will be
listed in alphabetical order.

GFNY Rockford - Medium
View Full Version Send to Device 59.4 mi +2,326 ft / -2,326 ft

+

−

© OpenStreetMap contributo

750
800
850
900
950

ele 
(ft)

10 20 30 40 50
distance in miles drag to zoom in

RWGPS

Perks included as part of GFNY Rockford

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://ridewithgps.com/routes/36878400
https://ridewithgps.com/routes/36878400
https://ridewithgps.com/routes/36878400/send_to_device
https://rockford.gfny.com/


SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/


THE JERSEY: All riders receive the o�cial GFNY Rockford race jersey, which is mandatory
attire at the race. The jersey is designed in NYC and Made in Italy. 

CHIP TIMING: GFNY Rockford is a timed race. Each athlete has their own timing chip, which
starts right after you cross the start line and stops when you cross the �nish line. Timing
results will be available at gfny.cc/results. 

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

http://gfny.cc/results
https://rockford.gfny.com/


FINISHER MEDAL: Every GFNY Rockford �nisher receives a medal, no matter which distance
they complete. All �nishers also earn a “Finish” towards their 3x2022 GFNY medal or the 10x
medal. Go to gfny.com/medals for more information on GFNY’s multi-�nisher medals.

GFNY Gear Go to our shop

Sunglasses SPEED
Gruppo

Limited Edition Jerseys Bib Shorts Bl
Ed.

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

http://gfny.com/medals
http://gfny.mybigcommerce.com/
https://gfny.mybigcommerce.com/sunglasses/
https://gfny.mybigcommerce.com/jerseys/
https://gfny.mybigcommerce.com/bib-shorts-black-ltd-ed/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


Coaching.gfny.com is a platform to help you �nd your best GFNY performance through
personalized training plans, performance analysis, online meetings and an extensive library
of training content.
 
GFNY Coaching can help you prepare for all your GFNY World races. You can choose from
one of three monthly plan options that provides you with a training plan by a GFNY coach to
help you meet your goals in your next GFNY, whether the goal is #breaking10, #breaking6, or
even #breaking4. All of our plans are customized for each athlete, and feedback and coach
contact is always included. GFNY Coaching is available in English and Spanish.
 
No matter your goals or level of experience in cycling, whether you have a couple of months
to tune-up, or half a year to change yourself completely as an athlete, you will be ready to hit
that PB, get your highest placing ever, or just �nish your �rst GFNY race.

GFNY Coaching

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

http://coaching.gfny.com/
https://coaching.gfny.com/contact-us/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


Click here to contact GFNY’s Head Coach

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://coaching.gfny.com/contact-us/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/


The GFNY Training Center section of coaching.gfny.com provides you content focused on
training topics like nutrition, cadence, and power, as well as course guides to GFNY races
around the World. This training and course strategy content is free of charge to every GFNY
athlete.

Check out the GFNY Training Center

GFNY Training Center

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

http://coaching.gfny.com/
https://coaching.gfny.com/training-guides/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


News
Read all news

 back in Brazil!
22

Join us at GFNY
Rockford

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-is-back-in-brazil-2/
https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-announces-gfny-rockford/
https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-announces-gfny-zapopan/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


back in Brazil with
o Gonçalves on

6, 2022!   The Course
çalves has the

d most equipped
er in Rio Grande do
ndaparque,

More

16 FEB 2022

            GFNY, the global endurance
sport series, is coming to
Rockford, Illinois on August 7,
2022!   The Course The pre-race
expo and post-race festivities
are all hosted from the
Venetian Club. The race start

Read More

Enjoy bike and
mariachis at GFNY
Zapopan
03 FEB 2022

        GFNY, the global endurance
sport series, is coming to
Zapopan, Mexico on October 2
2022!   The Course GFNY
Zapopan starts and �nishes in
the historic center of the city, 
front of the

Read More

GFNY Events Worldwide

GFNY World Championship NYC
15 MAY 2022

GFNY Punta del Este
20 MAR 2022

GFNY República Dominicana
20 MAR 2022

GFNY Cannes
27 MAR 2022

GFNY Peru
10 APR 2022

GFNY Jerusalem
13 MAY 2022

GFNY Villard de Lans

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-is-back-in-brazil-2/
https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-announces-gfny-rockford/
https://rockford.gfny.com/gfny-announces-gfny-zapopan/
https://nyc.gfny.com/
https://puntadeleste.gfny.com/
https://puntacana.gfny.com/
https://cannes.gfny.com/
https://peru.gfny.com/
https://jerusalem.gfny.com/
https://villarddelans.gfny.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


29 MAY 2022

GFNY Monterrey
05 JUN 2022

GFNY Michigan Ann Arbor
12 JUN 2022

GFNY Lourdes Tourmalet
12 JUN 2022

GFNY Panama
19 JUN 2022

GFNY La Vaujany Alpe d'Huez
19 JUN 2022

GFNY Texas Waco
26 JUN 2022

GFNY Costa Rica
03 JUL 2022

GFNY Uppsala
03 JUL 2022

GFNY Grand Ballon
10 JUL 2022

GFNY Bogota
17 JUL 2022

GFNY Bali
07 AUG 2022

GFNY Rockford
07 AUG 2022

GFNY Oaxaca
14 AUG 2022

GFNY Day
21 AUG 2022

GFNY Alpes Vaujany Croix de Fer
28 AUG 2022

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://villarddelans.gfny.com/
https://monterrey.gfny.com/
https://annarbor.gfny.com/
https://lourdes.gfny.com/
https://panama.gfny.com/
https://lavaujany.gfny.com/
https://waco.gfny.com/
http://www.gfnycostarica.com/
https://uppsala.gfny.com/
https://grandballon.gfny.com/
https://bogota.gfny.com/
http://gfnybali.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/
https://oaxaca.gfny.com/
https://gfny.com/gfny-day/
https://vaujany.gfny.com/
https://portugal.gfny.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


GFNY Portugal
04 SEP 2022

GFNY Manta
25 SEP 2022

GFNY Zapopan
02 OCT 2022

GFNY Bento Gonçalves
16 OCT 2022

GFNY Marathon Florida Sebring
22 OCT 2022

GFNY Florida Sebring
23 OCT 2022

GFNY Colonia
06 NOV 2022

GFNY Cozumel Mexico
13 NOV 2022

GFNY Quito
20 NOV 2022

GFNY Chile

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://portugal.gfny.com/
https://manta.gfny.com/
https://zapopan.gfny.com/
https://bento.gfny.com/
https://floridamarathon.gfny.com/
https://florida.gfny.com/
https://colonia.gfny.com/
https://cozumel.gfny.com/
https://quito.gfny.com/
https://chile.gfny.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


QUICK LINKS

Register

My GFNY Account

Course

Results

GFNY World

Apparel

Legal

 CONNECT  

YouTube

Facebook Group

Instagram

Podcast

Facebook
SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://rockford.gfny.com/register/
https://gfny.cc/
https://rockford.gfny.com/course/
https://gfny.cc/user/results
http://gfny.com/
https://gfny.com/apparel/
https://gfny.com/legal/
https://www.youtube.com/c/GFNYWorld
https://www.facebook.com/groups/gfnyclub/
https://www.instagram.com/gfny_usa/
https://gfny.com/podcast/
https://www.facebook.com/gfnyusa
https://rockford.gfny.com/


Privacy

Contact Us

Copyright © 2022 Gran Fondo New York Inc.

#madebylocastic

SUBSCRIBE TO OUR NEWSLETTER

Subscribe

AUGUST 7, 2022
ROCKFORD

https://gfny.com/legal/
https://gfny.com/privacy/
https://rockford.gfny.com/contact-us/
https://locastic.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


2/15/22, 8:12 AM GFNY cycling marathon coming to Rockford | MyStateline.com

https://www.mystateline.com/news/local-news/gnfy-cycling-marathon-coming-to-rockford/ 1/12

by: John Clark
Posted: Feb 10, 2022 / 11:26 AM CST
Updated: Feb 10, 2022 / 09:26 PM CST

SHARE

LOCAL NEWS

GFNY cycling marathon coming to Rockford
✕

21°

https://www.mystateline.com/author/wtvo-newsroom/
https://www.mystateline.com/news/local-news/
https://www.mystateline.com/weather/
https://www.mystateline.com/


2/15/22, 8:12 AM GFNY cycling marathon coming to Rockford | MyStateline.com

https://www.mystateline.com/news/local-news/gnfy-cycling-marathon-coming-to-rockford/ 2/12

ROCKFORD, Ill. (WTVO) — Rockford tourism o�icials announced Thursday that the

international GFNY cycling marathon will be coming to town.

GFNY World races over both a medium and long marathon route, and every finisher receives

a race jersey and a Finisher Medal.

“Rockford has so much to o�er for our cyclists – the beautiful scenery on the course, the

tranquil roads for their racing cycling, the tourism activities in Rockford and around the area,

and the fantastic, beautiful nature thought out Winnebago County,” said Lidia Fluhme,

president of Gran Fondo New York, Inc. “Weʼd like to say thank you to Rockford and

Winnebago County for the support to bring the race to your community. Weʼre really excited

and know the cyclist are going to receive a fantastic welcome from you all.”

Photos: GFNY

The long course will take cyclists on a 93.6 mile ride starts and ends near the Venetian Club on

Elmwood Rd. and passes by Carl and Myrna Nygren Wetland Preserve, Williams Tree Farm,

The Pavilion at Orchard Ridge Farms, Colored Sands Blu� Nature Preserve, Calvin and Sophia

Ferguson Forest Preserve and crosses over or runs along the Pecatonica, Sugar and Rock

Rivers as well as near Rockton, South Beloit, Durand, Shirland, and Lake Summerset.

ADVERTISING

✕

https://rockford.gfny.com/
https://rockford.gfny.com/


2/15/22, 8:12 AM GFNY cycling marathon coming to Rockford | MyStateline.com

https://www.mystateline.com/news/local-news/gnfy-cycling-marathon-coming-to-rockford/ 3/12

The medium course also starts at the Venetian Club, and consists of a non-competitive 59.4

mile track.

The event takes place on Sunday, August 7th, 2022, at 6 a.m. Registration is $217 per

participant.

GFNY began with a 2011 New York version of the Italian Gran Fondo race. GFNY now runs

marathons all over the world, including Italy, Mexico, Portugal, Argentina and more.

Rockfordʼs will be one of only five in the U.S. in 2022, and is expected to bring $1.3 million in

tourism dollars to the region.

“Iʼm thrilled another international event will take place in Rockford this summer,” said

Rockford Mayor Tom McNamara, “It takes a coordinated e�ort by partners across the

community to attract these events and ensure they are successful, and Iʼm thankful to all

involved who have helped make Rockford a sports tourism destination. I look forward to

welcoming more than 750 cyclists to our community in August!” 

Copyright 2022 Nexstar Media Inc. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten, or redistributed.

Replay

Learn more

AROUND THE WEB ✕

https://gfny.cc/ticket/register/4adfb7ae-8a95-11ec-8474-a4bf01295065
https://gfny.com/










2/15/22, 11:39 AM Cycling marathon GFNY coming to Rockford

https://www.wifr.com/2022/02/10/cycling-marathon-event-gfny-coming-rockford/ 1/8

21°
Rockford, IL

ADVERTISEMENT

ROCKFORD, Ill. (WIFR) - The largest cycling marathon in the world is coming to Rockford in 2022.

The Gran Fondo New York (GFNY) cycling marathon, loosely translated from Italian as “big ride,” held its first race in 2011. It’s now held more than 30
events in 15 countries, including Mexico, Portugal and Argentina.

“Rockford has so much to offer for our cyclists – the beautiful scenery on the course, the tranquil roads for their racing cycling, the tourism activities in
Rockford and around the area, and the fantastic, beautiful nature thought out Winnebago County,” said Lidia Fluhme, president of Gran Fondo New
York. “We’d like to say thank you to Rockford and Winnebago County for the support to bring the race to your community. We’re really excited and
know the cyclists are going to receive a fantastic welcome from you all.”

Rockford signed a three-year deal with GFNY, and city leaders expect the race to rack up nearly $1.3 million at local businesses during that time period.
The event is expected to draw at least 750 cyclists along with spectators filling more than 1,000 hotel room nights. The Rockford region is one of five
destinations to host this event in the United States in 2022, with the winners being granted a place at the GFNY World Championships in May of 2023.

ADVERTISEMENT

Cycling marathon GFNY coming to Rockford
The Gran Fondo New York (GFNY) cycling marathon held its first race in 2011.

By WIFR Newsroom
Published: Feb. 10, 2022 at 12:26 PM CST



 Weather Coronavirus Livestream Community Calendar See It Send It 

https://www.wifr.com/weather/
https://www.wifr.com/weather
https://www.wifr.com/health/coronavirus
https://www.wifr.com/livestream/
https://www.wifr.com/community/calendar
https://www.wifr.com/community/user-content
https://www.wifr.com/


2/15/22, 11:39 AM Cycling marathon GFNY coming to Rockford

https://www.wifr.com/2022/02/10/cycling-marathon-event-gfny-coming-rockford/ 2/8

The announcement was made Thursday morning.

The Rockford event will take place on Sunday, August 7, with planned run rides on the Friday and Saturday before the race. The race starts and ends in
Rockford near the Venetian Club on Elmwood Rd. and passes by Carl and Myrna Nygren Wetland Preserve, Williams Tree Farm, The Pavilion at Orchard
Ridge Farms, Colored Sands Bluff Nature Preserve, Calvin and Sophia Ferguson Forest Preserve and crosses over or runs along the Pecatonica, Sugar
and Rock Rivers as well as near Rockton, South Beloit, Durand, Shirland, and Lake Summerset. To see an interactive map of the route, click here.

Any athlete over the age of 18 is eligible to participate in this cycling event. Participants do not have to qualify or be a licensed racer with a federation
to take part in GFNY. Registration information can be found at www.gfny.com.

Copyright 2022 WIFR. All rights reserved.

#LIVE NOW: Rockford-area leaders announce major i#LIVE NOW: Rockford-area leaders announce major i……
WIFR TV was live·FollowFollow Share

Sponsored Stories

READ MORE

Top Articles

Board decides masks are optional

in schools



 Weather Coronavirus Livestream Community Calendar See It Send It 

https://ridewithgps.com/routes/37864771?privacy_code=z2igwTydYCwXIXgx
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=http%3a%2f%2fwww.gfny.com&c=E,1,YfkxtkuxgXEPpCWGzXuba3-A7daZEc9c63fmJLovWj1v-_cQe-SkLA9oRbl0ojI2CRRaC55w8BWkIizScWXJQXP_dSZjmWvOqJ3laeMCBC8nluc,&typo=1
https://www.facebook.com/watch/23WIFR/
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?ref=external&v=649260076490565
https://www.facebook.com/watch/23WIFR/
https://searchthese.net/index.php?rgid=183533&gclid=$ob_click_id$&obOrigUrl=true
https://www.bindright.com/pa/?tg_ref=brt1dv4&camp_id=0026cb0698ac3967753c1cb2726c43c752&keyword=%24%7Bregion%7D%24+Launches+New+Guidelines+For+Cars+Used+Less+Than+50+Miles%2FDa&sub2=$publisher_name$_$section_name$&obclid=$ob_click_id$&obOrigUrl=true
https://www.outbrain.com/what-is/default/en
https://www.wifr.com/video/2022/02/15/board-decides-masks-are-optional-schools/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.wifr.com/video/2022/02/15/board-decides-masks-are-optional-schools/?traffic_source=Connatix
https://www.wifr.com/weather
https://www.wifr.com/health/coronavirus
https://www.wifr.com/livestream/
https://www.wifr.com/community/calendar
https://www.wifr.com/community/user-content
https://www.wifr.com/


2/25/22, 3:38 PM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 1/2

Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

Corporation File Detail Report

Entity Information

Agent Information

cyberdriveillinois.com is now ilsos.gov

Office of the Secretary of State Jesse White  

File Number 53594433

Entity Name ROCKFORD AREA CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU

Status
ACTIVE

Entity Type
CORPORATION

Type of Corp
NOT-FOR-PROFIT

Incorporation Date (Domestic)
Thursday, 27 September 1984

State
ILLINOIS

Duration Date
PERPETUAL

Name



2/25/22, 3:38 PM Corporation/LLC Search/Certificate of Good Standing

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/CorporateLlcController 2/2

Fri Feb 25 2022

Annual Report

This information was printed from www.ilsos.gov, the official website of the Illinois Secretary of State's Office.

JOHN ALAN GROH

Address
102 N MAIN ST 
ROCKFORD , IL 61101

Change Date
Thursday, 30 July 2009

Filing Date
Tuesday, 17 August 2021

For Year
2021

Return to Search 

File Annual Report

Adopting Assumed Name

Change of Registered Agent and/or Registered O�ce

(One Certificate per Transaction)

https://apps.ilsos.gov/corporatellc/


 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

SPONSORED BY:  KEITH MCDONALD, JOHN BUTITTA AND PAUL ARENA  
 

2022 CR_______ 
 

RESOLUTION SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORS BY REFERENDUM THE 
ADVISORY QUESTION OF INCREASING THE TAX LEVIED BY THE 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE OF 
MAINTAINING RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME 

 
WHEREAS, since 1883, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) has owned 

and operated River Bluff Nursing Home (River Bluff), which provides a continuum of 
intermediate and skilled nursing services to all County residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a public owned facility, River Bluff has been a valuable and 

affordable asset to all County residents, but it has created a financial hardship for the 
County; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County incurred an operating deficit of approximately $2,400,000 

in its operation of River Bluff during fiscal year 2021; and   
 
WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the County will continue to incur an increase in 

an operating deficit of approximately $2.4 million in its operation of River Bluff, so it is in 
the best interests of the residents of Winnebago County that the tax rate be increased to the 
maximum rate for the maintenance of River Bluff; and   
 

WHEREAS, Section 5-21001 (8) of the Illinois Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/5-21001 
(8), authorizes counties of not more than 1,000,000 to levy and collect annually a tax of 
not to exceed 0.1% of the value, as equalized or assessed by the Department of Revenue, 
of all the taxable property in the county; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County Board has authority to levy and collect annually a tax of 

not to exceed 0.1% after the proposition to levy or increase such tax was submitted to the 
electors of the county and approved by a majority of the voters on November 7, 1989; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/5-1005.5 and 10 ILCS 5/28.1, the County 

Board may authorize an advisory question of public policy to be placed on the ballot at the 
next regularly scheduled election in the county by a vote of the majority of the members 
of the County Board; and  

 



 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 10 ILCS 5/28-2(c), the resolution authorizing placing the 
advisory question on the ballot must be adopted not less than seventy-nine (79) days before 
a regularly scheduled election where the advisory referendum question is to appear, which 
is by April 11, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board wishes to place an advisory question of public 

policy on the ballot of the next regularly scheduled election on June 28, 2022, regarding 
whether Winnebago County shall continue to own and operate River Bluff, by increasing 
the tax levied by the County from 0.0445% to 0.1%, for the specific purpose of maintaining 
River Bluff. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the following advisory referendum question be placed on the 
ballot in the County of Winnebago to be voted on by all qualified electors on June 28, 
2022: 
 

SHALL THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS CONTINUE TO OWN 
AND OPERATE A SHORT-TERM REHABILITATIVE/LONG-TERM SKILLED 

NURSING FACILITY, FOR THE RESIDENTS OF ALL INCOMES, BY 
INCREASING THE AMOUNT LEVIED BY THE COUNTY FROM 0.0445% TO 
0.1%, FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE OF MAINTAINING THE RIVER BLUFF 
NURSING HOME? (i.e. The property tax rate increase on a $150,000 home would 

approximately result in a $25 annual increase on your tax bill) 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the question as fully set forth above are 
authorized and shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the County of Winnebago at 
the regularly scheduled election to be held on June 28, 2022, in accordance with all 
applicable provisions of Illinois law; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk of the County of Winnebago 

is hereby directed to certify the referendum question set forth above in accordance with the 
Illinois Election Code no later than April 21, 2022, and to take any other actions necessary 
to cause the question to be placed on the ballot of the regularly scheduled election to be 
held on June 28, 2022. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the that the Clerk of the County Board shall 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Clerk, County 
Treasurer, County Auditor, Administrator of River Bluff Nursing Home and the County 
Administrator.  

 
 

                  Respectfully submitted, 
                   OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 



 
 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          __________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________          _________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           _________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      _________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2022. 
 
 
                      _________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

     County Board of the County of     
     Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



                                                                                      County Board Meeting: March 10, 2022 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2022 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

SPONSORED BY:  PAUL ARENA AND JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

WHEREAS, between election cycles a change to any Chairman or Committee Member 
may be amended by the affirmative vote of the majority of the Winnebago County Board. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that assignments to the County Board Committees shall be amended as indicated on 
Schedule A attached.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver a copy of this Resolution to the County Administrator and County Clerk. 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 
        OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 

 
________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Keith McDonald, Chairman         Keith McDonald, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
John Butitta, Vice Chairman           John Butitta, Vice Chairman 
 
 



_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Jean Crosby               Jean Crosby 
 
_________________________________           ____________________________________ 
Paul Arena               Paul Arena  
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman                     Joe Hoffman 
 
_________________________________      ____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd          Dorothy Redd 
 
__________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado                     Jaime Salgado 

 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County  
of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2022. 
 

 

                      ____________________________________  
                                                                             Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 

County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SCHEDULE A 

AMENDED  
COUNTY BOARD COMMITTEES  

 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT          PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY 
Chair: Fred Wescott           Chair: Burt Gerl 
Vice Chair: Dorothy Redd          Vice Chair: Aaron Booker 
Jean Crosby             Kevin McCarthy 
Brad Lindmark           Brad Lindmark 
Angela Fellars            Tim Nabors 
Tim Nabors            Angie Goral 
John F. Sweeney           Dorothy Redd 
     
 
FINANCE             PUBLIC WORKS 
Chair: Jaime Salgado           Chair: Dave Tassoni 
Vice Chair: Steve Schultz          Vice Chair: Dave Kelley 
John Butitta            Kevin McCarthy 
Paul Arena            Angela Fellars 
Joe Hoffman            Burt Gerl 
Jean Crosby            Jim Webster 
Keith McDonald            
        
 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE        ZONING  
Chair: Keith McDonald           Chair: Jim Webster 
Vice Chair: John Butitta                      Vice Chair: Angie Goral 
Jean Crosby             Steve Schultz 
Paul Arena             Aaron Booker 
Joe Hoffman             Tim Nabors 
Dorothy Redd             Dave Kelley 
Jaime Salgado             John F. Sweeney 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059| Email: mdokken@wincoil.us    

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  February 17, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Winnebago 

County Coroner’s Office 
County Code:       Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
   
Board Meeting Date:    February 24, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                Appropriation Amount:  $110,300 
If not, explain funding source:     Fund Balance 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 32500/41110……………………Budget Impact:   $70,400 
                                           41900/42115, 46430………..Budget Impact:   $39,900 

 
Background Information: This amendment is needed to hire two new Deputy Coroners to 

help eliminate night shifts in which only one deputy coroner is on 
duty, and at times deputies need to be hired back at time and a 
half. This budget amendment will also provide a raise to move an 
employee to office manager. The amendment will allow the 
department to purchase two Mitel phones for the new deputies as 
well. The coroner's department will also be able to purchase 
Stryker Power Load lifts for the coroner vehicles, which allow 
coroner's deputies to place large decedents in their vehicles 
without getting hurt 

  
 
Recommendation:  Department Agrees 
  
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:     Not Applicable       

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Feb 17, 2022 
 Lay Over: Feb 24, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Mar 3, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, The Coroner’s office is in need of new deputy coroner positions and new 
equipment for the deputies and the coroner’s vehicles. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-007 Coroner’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 
 



2 
 

   
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



2/17/2022
Coroner Dave Rickert

0001 & 0119

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

32500 41110 Regular Salaries $736,528 $0 $736,528 $70,400 $806,928
41900 42115 Non-Capital Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000
41900 46430 Machinery & Equipment $0 $0 $0 $37,900 $37,900

Revenue
Fund Balance

$110,300
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

General Fund, Fund Balance

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$110,300 

This amendment is needed to hire two new Deputy Coroner's to help eliminate night shifts in which only 1 deputy coroner is on 
duty, and at times deputies need to be hired back at time and a half. This budget amendment will also provide a raise to move 
an employee to office manager. The amendment will allow the department to purchase Five mitel phones for the office as well. 
The coroner's department will also be able to purchase Stryker Power Load lifts for the coroner vehicles, which allow coroner's 
deputies to place large decedents in their vehicles without getting hurt.

2022-007

32500 & 41900DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059| Email: mdokken@wincoil.us    

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
 
 
Prepared By:   Dave Rickert 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
Committee Date:  March 10, 2022 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the purchase of 

the parking lot at the corner of Church and Chestnut. 
County Code:       Winnebago County Annual Appropriation Ordinance 
   
Board Meeting Date:    March 10, 2022 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  No                                                Appropriation Amount:  $1,135,600 
 
If not, explain funding source:     Fund Balance 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 13500-46110             Budget Impact:   $1,135,600 

 
Background Information: As part of the County’s lease agreement with Church & Chestnut 

Development, LLC, the County has the right of first refusal on any 
contemplated sale of any or all the property located at Church and 
Chestnut St. Church & Chestnut Development sent the County 
notice of a pending sale to a third party, and the county has decided 
to exercise it’s right to purchase the property for a sum of 
$1,135,600. 

  
 
Recommendation:  Department Agrees 
  
 
Contract/Agreement:   
 
Legal Review:     Reviewed by State’s Attorney’s Office 
 
 

        

http://www.wincoil.us/


1 
 

2022 Fiscal Year Finance:            Mar 10, 2022 
 Lay Over: Mar 10, 2022 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: Mar 24, 2022 
Jaime Salgado, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2022 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2021 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

 WHEREAS, The County has exercised its option to purchase the parking lot located at 
310 South Church and 320 and 324 Chestnut St. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 at its September 30, 2021 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #2022-009 Parking Lot Purchase. 
. 
. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
  

 



2 
 

 
   

 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



3/10/2022
Miscellaneous County Dave Rickert

0001

Department 
Org Number

Object 
(Account) 
Number Object (Account) Description

Adopted 
Budget

Amendments 
Previously 
Approved

Revised 
Approved 

Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)

Revised 
Budget after 

Approved 
Budget 

Amendment
Expenditures

13500 46110 Land $0 $0 $0 $1,135,600 $1,135,600

Revenue
Fund Balance

$1,135,600.00
Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

2022
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

Fund Balance

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

Impact to fiscal year 2022 budget:  

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

None

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

$1,135,600 

Winnebago County has exercised it's option to purchase the parking lot located at 310 South Church and 320 and 324 Chestnut 
St.

2022-009

13500DEPT. BUDGET NO.



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: March 10, 2022 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Federal Register / Vol/ 87, No. 35 /Tuesday, February 22, 2022 / Notice 

 
b. Constellation Energy Generation, LLC – Request for Additional Information 

Regarding Fleet License Amendment Request to Adopt TSTF-541 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a notice that on or 
around March 28, 2022, Spectrum Mid-America, LLC, will launch Story TV HD on 
Spectrum Select for the following: 

 
a. Township of Harlem 
b. Township of Rockton 
c. Township of Roscoe 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency a 

Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste. Description of Project: Landfill No. 
2 – 5 Year Permit Renewal.  

 
4. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago 

County Treasurer the Investment Report as of March 1, 2022.  
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution to Exercise Option to Purchase Parking Lot Located at 310 S. Church & 320 & 324 Chestnut St.
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Litigation (Kottman & Wilkinson v. Cty. of Winnebago)
	Resolution for Approval of Budget Amendment for Implementing PREA Standards
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for ERAP I
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution to Grant $25,000 from Host Fees to RACVB
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Submitting to Electors by Referendum the Advisory Question
	Resolution Amending Organizational Structure of County Board
	Unfinished Business
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Winn. Cty. Coroner's Office
	New Business
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Purchase of Parking Lot at Corner of Church & Chestnut
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



